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Summary/Context:

The Los Burros Ranger Station was built in 1910 to serve as seasonal quarters for 
the Lake Mountain fire guard/lookout and as a temporary base for fire-fighting 
crews. It is located on Forest Road 224 (the Vernon-McNary Road), and some six 
miles northwest of McNary, Navajo County. Lake Mountain is situated slightly over 
one mile to the north-northeast (see attached Vicinity Map).

The general setting of the Station is adjacent to gently sloping flats amid cinder 
cones of the White Mountains volcanic field. At an average elevation of about 
8000 feet, most of the area is forested, with Ponderosa pine being the dominant 
species. The flatter areas, because of clayey, poorly drained soils, support only 
grasses and forbs in meadowland associations.

Los Burros, as nominated, contains two standing structures and a developed spring. 
The two-room frame house/office and frame barn are situated among oak, Ponderosa 
pine and aspen, overlooking a meadow. This location was selected because of the 
presence of a perennial spring and the availability of pasture for the fire crew's 
pack animals. The physical context of the Station has changed little in the past 
century. In addition to the nominated structures, the vicinity also contains a 
small corral, but this appears to be of relatively recent construction; it may 
be presumed that this replaces an earlier corral. Some 15-20 years ago, aspen 
log fences were built around each of the nominated structures to provide a 
measure of protection from recreationists and hunters who camp here. The corral 
and protective fences are explicitly excluded from further consideration here.

Architectural Description;

The two-room quarters is of 1x12" board and 1x4" batten construction. Exterior 
dimensions are 16'4" by 32 T 10" with the longer, front side facing west toward 
the meadow. The internal dividing wall is 16'11" from the north wall. In the 
center of the internal wall is the chimney facility, which consists of an open 
box of 2x12" planks surmounted by an enclosed, plastered brick box with a hole for 
a stove pipe. The larger room (the one more likely used as an office) has a door 
and 1/1 double sash window in both the east and west walls; the doors are directly 
opposite each other, as are the windows. The smaller, south room has a door on 
the west side and a 1/1 double sash window on the south and east sides.

The simple gable roof was likely shingled with wood originally, but is currently 
covered with green asphalt shingles. The exterior walls appear to have been red 
originally, but are now painted cream.

This building was built on a slight slope. The northeast corner appears to rest 
on native soil, with the remainder sitting on unshaped basalt footings. The 
footings appear to have been mostly dry-laid although some cement was used.

The barn is located 263' south of the quarters (see attached Site Plan). It is 
of the same board and batten construction as the house/office and is also oriented
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north-south. It measures 24'3" by 26'7". It has a steep-pitched gable roof with 
wood shingles. None of the original interior features remain (because of 
deterioration, the main internal supprots were replaced with 2x4 *'s some 15-20 years 
ago). There are only two indications of internal subdivison. One is metal sheeting 
nailed to the lower portion of the walls in the northeast corner; presumably, 
this area was used for storing grain and/or tack. The other is a loft door on the 
south end of the building, but no evidence of the extent of the loft is visible.

The spring, located between,and uphill from,the structures, has been developed 
with a concrete liner and cap. The whole has been covered with native stone, so the 
outward appearance is similar to surrounding terrain. This perennial water source 
was certainly one of the main reasons for selecting the site as a guard station.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Summary:

The Los Burros Ranger Station, Built in 1910, is significant as the oldest of the 
extant Forest Service structures on the Apache-Sitgreaves National Forests. Other 
National Forests in Arizona may have structures of similar age and function, but 
Los Burros appears to be the sole survivor in terms of mode of construction. While 
architecturally unexceptional, the quarters and barn are typical of the facilities 
used at the beginning of active management of forested, public lands in the western 
United States. The Station's rural setting evokes the management situation of the 
time, initially the need to protect the timber resource from wildfire and later to 
administer the controlled harvesting of that resource. The Los Burros Ranger 
Station meets the Naitonal Register criteria for its historic association with the 
inception of Federal policy for the conservation of the nation's timber and watershed 
resources, and, less generally, with the establishment of the Sitgreaves National 
Forest.

Historical Background;

There is no physical evidence, historic or prehistoric, of prior use of this 
area. However, Forest Road 224 is generally accepted as more-or-less following 
the route taken by Francisco Vasquez de Coronado in 1540 during his initial search 
for the Seven Cities of Cibola. Additionally, the General Land Office township 
plat, based on an 1882 survey, shows the name of one D. Martin associated with a 
house south of the spring. No other relevant records can be found, but this 
is not unusual for the period involved; few people in this general area formally 
filed on their homesteads before the turn of the century. Thus, recorded history 
of Los Burros essentially begins with the advent of the Forest Service.

As the culmination of long-term efforts by foresters, other scientists, 
conservationists and politicians, the Forest Reserve Act of March 3, 1891 
gave the President the authority to set aside forested public lands in order to 
halt the uncontrolled exploitation of timber and the consequent deterioration of 
watersheds. This Act was supplanted by the Pettigrew amendment to the Sundry 
Civil Appropriations Bill which has come to be known as the Organic Act of June 4,
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1897. The forest reserves were administered by the Bureau of Forestry. In 1905 
the Bureau was moved from the Departmentof Interior to Agruculture, and renamed 
the United States Forest Service shortly thereafter. The Act of March 4, 1907 
declared that the forest reserves would hence forth be known as national forests, 
reflecting the determination that the public timber resources should be used for 
the^nation's benefit rather than being reserved from such uses. In Arizona 
Territory, the Black Mesa Forest Reserve was established on August 17, 1898. On 
July 1, 1908, a portion of this was proclaimed the Sitgreaves National Forest.

The actual day-to-day management of a national forest in the early 1900's was no 
easy chore. A few people were responsible for a large area where competing interests- 
for timber, grazing land and homesteads—were plentiful. And, of course, there 
was the threat of wildfire. The Sitgreaves country, especially along the Mogollon 
Rim, has one of the highest incidence rates of lightning strikes known, so this 
threat was very real and continuous for at least one-third of the year. One of the 
ways to meet the threat was to station lookouts, or guards as they were called, at 
various places around the Forest from which fires could be quickly spotted and 
suppressed. Lake Mountain was one such place, it being, at 8500 feet in elevation, 
the highest eminence in the vicinity. Another critical factor is the general 
isolation of the area. The local climate is unsuited for subsistence farming 
and usually will limit grazing to summertime, so there has been virtually no 
permanent occupation nearby. The District Ranger's Office was located in Show Low 
at this time, some 25 miles distant over dirt roads. With the large, virgin 
stands of Ponderosa pine surrounding Los Burros, apparently it was deemed 
necessary to have a fire guard present so a rapid response could be made to any 
flareup.

In order to accommodate the creature comforts of the fire guards and their horses 
(the only means of reliable and rapid transit), facilities had to be made available. 
In some instances it would appear that a line shack and corral belonging to a local 
rancher could be used, but in others, as with the case of the Lake Mountain guard, 
nothing was at hand, so accommodations had to be built. A request was made in 1909 
to construct quarters and a barn at Los Burros. This was adjacent to what was then 
the only road in the area, water was in dependable supply here, and the nearby 
meadows would provide pasture for a large number of pack animals in the event that 
a crew of fire-fighters needed to be called in. Communication with the Ranger's 
office in Show Low was by telephone or perhaps telegraph, along a bare-wire line 
strung from insulators nailed to trees. For the time and the locale, this could be 
considered state-of-the-art. A lookout tower was built atop Lake Mountain in 1926 
or '27, and the fire guard may have moved his quarters there at this time. (There 
is no available record on the Lake Mountain facilities before this tower was 
constructed.)

Use by the fire guard was probably the primary role for Los Burros Ranger Station 
until 1918. In that year, 250 million board-feet of timber from the surrounding area 
were sold to the McNary Lumber Company, and the Station would accommodate the Forest 
Service timber sale administrator for the next two to three decades. The role of 
the sale administrator—indeed, the .primary role of the agency during this period—
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was to ensure that proper harvesting techniques were employed. Although silvicultural 
science was still a relatively young discipline, the objective of long-term, 
sustained yield of timber outputs was at the core of agency philosophy. This timber 
sale was one of the first large releases by the Forest, and served to stimulate 
community growth in the area, most notably McNary's development as a mill and logging 
town.

With the end of the large timber sale in the late '40's or early '50 ! s, the Station 
fell into disuse. Despite a certain amount of neglect in the interim, the 
structures remain in fair condition, providing a focus for public interpretationu 
and a window on early Forest Service history.
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